
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 

 
 
 

#plymlicensing 

Licensing Sub Committee 
 

Tuesday 29 September 2020 

10.00 am 

Virtual Meeting 

 

Members: 

Councillors Hendy, Mrs Pengelly and Rennie. 

 

Fourth Member: 

Councillor Morris. 

 

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 

 

Please note that, due to the nature of this Committee, we may need to send ‘to follow’ 

documents which were not expected at the time of the agenda publication.  These documents 

may be considered under part I or part II. 

 

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 

process please follow this link - http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings 

 

 

 

Tracey Lee 

Chief Executive 

 

 

 
Oversight and Governance 

Chief Executive’s Department 

Plymouth City Council 

Floor 3 (West) Ballard House 

West Hoe Road 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

 

Please ask for  Democratic Support 

T 01752 305155 

E democratic.support@plymouth.gov.uk 

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Published 17 September 2020 

Public Document Pack

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGENDA 
  

1. Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair    

  

 The Committee will appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair for this particular meeting. 

  

2. Apologies    

  

 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 

  

3. Declarations of Interest    

  

 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 

  

4. Chair's Urgent Business    

  

 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 

  

5. Review of Premises Licence: Royal Oak, Lake Road, 

Plymouth   

(Pages 1 - 30) 

  

 The Director for Public Health will submit a report in respect of Royal Oak, Lake Drive, 

Plymouth for the review of premises licence, under Section 53A of the Licensing Act 

2003.  

  

6. Review of Premises Licence: Lockdown Inn, Southway Drive, 

Plymouth   

(Pages 31 - 52) 

  

 The Director for Public Health will submit a report in respect of Lockdown Inn, 

Southway Drive, Plymouth for the review of premises licence, under Section 53A of the 

Licensing Act 2003.  

  

7. Exempt Business    

  

 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 

business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 

information as defined in paragraph(s)  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended 

by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  



 

  

OFFICIAL 

REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE REPORT   

Licensing Sub Committee

 

Date:    29 September 2020 

Title of Report: Review of Premises Licence: Royal Oak, Lake Road, Plymouth  

Lead Member: Councillor Sally Haydon (Cabinet Member for Customer Focus and 

Community Safety) 

Lead Strategic Director: Dr Ruth Harrell (Office of the Director of Public Health) 

Author:   Marie Price (Licensing Officer) 

Contact Email:   Licensing@plymouth.gov.uk 

Your Reference:  ERS/LIC/PREM 

Key Decision:   No 

Confidentiality:  Part I - Official 

Purpose of the report:  

An application has been received from Will Tomkins, Environmental Health Officer under Section 51 of 

the Licensing Act 2003 for the review of the premises licence in respect of the Royal Oak, Lake Road, 

Plymouth. 
 
      
Recommendations and Reasons: 

That Members consider this report. 

Alternative options considered and rejected: 

None. 

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan: 

Our Plan – A City to be proud of. 

This report links to the delivery of the City and Council objectives and outcomes 

within the plan. 

A Growing City: The Licensing Policy and system aims to provide a balance between the need to 

protect residents and to enable legitimate businesses to operate within a necessary and proportionate 

regulatory framework.  This in turn makes a safer, more vibrant Plymouth to allow economic growth 

and opportunities for increased levels of employment. 

A Caring Council: The Licensing Policy has put in place an appropriate framework to allow the 

effective control of alcohol supply and regulated entertainment to keep all members of society 

protected and feeling safe by focusing on prevention and early intervention. The licensing system 

minimise the burdens on business and to allow communities the opportunity to influence decisions. 

See Our Plan  

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     

Not applicable 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5

http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/new_corporate_plan.pdf


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 2 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:  

None 

  
 

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 

Management: 

* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the 

Council’s duty to promote equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations 

between people who share protected characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not. 

Members should be aware that Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 puts a statutory duty on 

every Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the need to do all that it 

reasonably can do to prevent crime and disorder in its area. 

Published work / information: 

For more information please see the below links.  

Statement of Licensing Policy  

Licensing Act 2003 

Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 - April_2018                             

 

Appendices  

 

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)  

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate  

why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A  

of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

A Briefing report (mandatory)        

            

         

         

         

 

Background papers:  

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background 

papers are unpublished works, relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose 

facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the work is based. 

Title of background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it 

is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Application        

        

Page 2Agenda Item 5

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Licensing%20Policy%202019%20%20-%202024_2.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 3 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

   

 

 

Sign off: 
 

Fin Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

Leg 3531

4/ag/9

.9.20 

Mon 

Off 

Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

HR Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

Asset

s  

Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

Strat 

Proc 

Click here 

to enter 

text. 

Originating Senior Leadership Team member:  N/A 

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report?  N/A    

Date agreed: 

 

Cabinet Member signature of approval:  [electronic signature (or typed name and statement of 

‘approved by email’) on Cabinet member approval only] N/A 

Date:  
 

 

 

 

Page 3 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 4 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

1.0    INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 On the 11 August 2020 the licensing department received an application from Will Tomkins, 

Environmental Health Officer under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the review of the 

premises licence in respect of the Royal Oak situated at Lake Road, Hooe, Plymouth. 

1.2    Review application. 

Environmental Health have applied for the review of the premises licence for the purpose of 

promoting the licensing objectives in relation to the prevention of a public nuisance. A Copy of 

this application has been served by Will Tomkins, Environmental Health Officer on each of the 

responsible authorities and the holder of the premises licence.   

Environmental Health will say that complaints were received from local residents regarding a noise 

nuisance of amplified live and recorded music taking place in the beer garden of the Royal Oak, 

Hooe.  Complaints also appeared in the media and online included a clip of the music audible on 

the opposite side of the park in Hooe. 

They will further say they attended the premises to discuss the noise levels with Mr John 

Chambers the premises licence holder and also the Designated Premises Supervisor, and gave 

advice regarding the level of noise and the current Covid-19 guidance for public houses and 

performing arts. 

The following weekend, the Licensing Manager visited the Royal Oak and witnessed the noise 

levels, taking a video clip of the music/singing from a live act which was audible on the south west 

coast path 50 metres away. Further complaints from nearby residents including video footage of 

the music was received which was clearly causing a significant nuisance. 

In accordance with review proceedings at 1522 hrs on 11 August 2020 a licensing officer from 

Plymouth City Council attended the premises and the Premises Licence Holder and DPS were not 

present spoke to the bar person, Katy Musgrove, and requested the site notice be displayed at the 

premises. He then placed a notice on the drain pipe outside the premises. 

At 1124hrs the following day a similar notice was displayed on the public notice board at the 

Council House, Armada Way, Plymouth. 

 

1.3    Licensable Activities. 

        These premises have the following licensable activities and timings. 

  

(c) Indoor Sporting Events 

Monday to Sunday 8.00pm to midnight 

 

(e) Live Music (Indoors)       

 Friday and Saturday 5.00pm to 11.00pm 

(Suspended by Live Music Act 2012 & and the Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) 

Order 2014) 

(f) Recorded Music (Indoors)      

Monday to Sunday 10.00am to 11.00pm 

(Suspended by Live Music Act 2012 & and the Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) 

Order 2014) 

(m) Supply of Alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises. 

Page 4Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 5 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

Monday to Sunday 10.00am to Midnight 

Non Standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 

permitted hours on the following day. 

 

(l) Hours Premises are Open to the Public                       

Monday to Sunday 10.00am to 12.30am 

Non Standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 

permitted hours on the following day. 

 

1.4 Conditions attached to the licence (Appendix 1) 

 

2.0    RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES  

 

2.1  Devon & Cornwall Police – no representations.  

  

2.2    Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service – no representations. 

 

2.3    Trading Standards – no representations 

 

2.4    Planning Officer - no representations. 

 

2.5    Child Protection – no representations 

 

2.6    Health & Safety Executive – no representations. 

 

2.7    Health Authority (ODPH) – no representations. 

 

2.8    Licensing Authority – no representations. 

 

3.0   OTHER PARTIES 

    We have received 6 letters in support of the application from residents within the vicinity of the 

premises and a local Councillor. We have also received 8 letters against the application.   

 

4.0 CONSIDERATIONS 

4.1  In making its decision the Committee is obliged to have regard to the application and any relevant 

representations.  

  The Committee should take such steps, if any, as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 

licensing objectives, which are:   

 the prevention of crime and disorder; 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 6 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 public safety; 

 the prevention of public nuisance; 

 the protection of children from harm. 

 

In making its decision the Committee is also obliged to have regards to: 

 The guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 with the following 

paragraph’s relevant to this application:   

o 1.2 - 1.5, 1.9, 1.10, 1.12, 1.16, 1.17 

o 2.15 – 2.21 

o 11.1, 11.7, 11.9, 11.10, 11.10, 11.11 and 11.16 - 11.23 

 The Council’s own Licensing Policy with the following headed paragraphs being relevant to 
this application:   

o Licensing Hours (Page 12)  

o Designated Premises Supervisor (Page 15) 

o Public Nuisance (Page 19)  

o Licensing Conditions (page 22) and  

o Review of premises licence (Page 24-25) 

 Also the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties. 

 

4.2 The steps referred to above are : 

(a) to modify the conditions of the licence (which includes adding new conditions, any 

alteration or omission of an existing condition); 

(b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 

(c) to remove the designated premises supervisor; 

(d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

(e) to revoke the licence; 

 

Members are made aware that any existing conditions relating to live or recorded music which are 

already on the licence are suspended between the hours of 8am and 11pm due to amendments 

made to the Licensing Act 2003. However on a review of a premises licence, section 177A(3) of 
the Act permits a licensing authority to lift that suspension. Also section 177A(4) of the Licensing 

Act 2003 would allow Members to add a condition to the licence relating to music as if it were 

regulated entertainment. If members were to do this then any condition would need to include a 

statement that section 177A of the Act does not apply to that condition. 

 

Where the committee takes a step in 4.2 (a) or (b), it may provide that the modification or exclusion 

is to have effect for only such period (not exceeding three months) as it may specify. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 7 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 ANNEX 2 - CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE  

A Supply of alcohol 

Any existing conditions attached to existing justices licence· 

The authorised hours for the sale of alcohol do not prohibit: 

1. during the first twenty minutes after the end of authorised hours the consumption of the alcohol 

on the premises; 

2. during the first twenty minutes after the end of authorised hours, the taking of the alcohol from 
the premises unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 

3. during the first thirty minutes after the end of authorised hours the consumption of the alcohol 

on the premises by persons taking meals there if the alcohol was supplied for consumption as 

ancillary to the meals; 

4. consumption of the alcohol on the premises or the taking of sale or supply of alcohol to any 

person residing in the licensed premises; 

5. the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor of the 

alcohol so ordered; 

6. the sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club; 

7. the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale or supply 

of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised mess of 

members of Her Majesty’s naval, military or air forces; 

8. the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there; or 

9. the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a person residing 

there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or the consumption of alcohol by 

persons so supplied; or 

10. the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there for the 

purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the consumption of alcohol so 

supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of their employer or of the person carrying on or 

in charge of the business on the premises. 

  

B Conditions agreed with Environmental Health Authority 

1. Doors and windows will be kept shut during entertainment. 

2. Staff will check prior to entertainment, and periodically during the entertainment, that all 

windows and doors are shut. 

3. A senior member of staff (manager) will assess the impact of any noisy activities on neighbouring 

premises at the start of the activity/entertainment and periodically throughout the 

activity/entertainment and take action to reduce noise levels if they are found to be 

excessive/distinguishable above background levels at the nearest residential property. 

4. Management will control the sound levels of the music/entertainment. 

5. Before 23:00 hrs 

To prevent entertainment being intrusive, noise emanating from the premises will not be clearly 

audible 1 metre from the façade of the nearest residential property. 

6. Use of Gardens, Play Areas and outside areas 

Appendix 1 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 8 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

The use of gardens and external play areas will not commence before the start of normal trading 

hours and will cease at 23:00 hours. 

7. Regulated entertainment will cease at 23:00 hours to include karaoke, recorded music and live 

entertainment. 

 C Steps taken in order to promote the four Licensing objectives 

1. Staff banned from drinking on duty. 

2. Records maintained of any material incidents within or in immediate vicinity of premises. 

3. Drugs warning notices on display. 

4. Zero tolerance to drugs use and dealing. 

5. Policy of banning customers for misbehaviour within or in vicinity of premises where deemed 

necessary and appropriate. 

6. Availability of soft drinks, non-alcoholic and/or low alcohol beverages at all times. 

7. Food available. 

8. Specific staff training and supervision in assessment of customer consumption and condition. 

9. CCTV system operating externally and partially internally. 

10. No drinks hoarding. 

11. Pro-active policy against “binge” drinking. 

12. Zero tolerance to offensive conduct. 

13. Regular glass collection. 

14. Air-conditioning provided. 

15. Regular dedicated cleaning of premises. 

16. Limit on number in premises. 

17. Freephone or similar taxi facility. 

18. Nominated staff to deal with complaints from neighbours. 

19. Full training for staff in law specifically relating to minors and alcohol and specific photo I/D 

proof of age requirements. 

  

 Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

Suitable signage be positioned at exits to request the co-operation of patrons in particular to make 

as little noise as possible when leaving the premise, and patrons would be asked not to stand around 

talking in the street outside of the premises, and asked to leave the vicinity quickly and quietly. 

    The outside storage facility not to be accessed after 23:00 hours on any day. 

For the supply of alcohol Monday to Sunday 10:00 hours to 00:00 hours. 

Opening Hours to be Monday to Sunday 10:00 hours to 00:30 hours. 

Music activity other than recorded music to be restricted to Friday and Saturday and one other 

day, within one week, with the exception of Bank Holidays. 

 

 

 

Page 8Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 9 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 2 

  

  

  

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 10 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

  

Page 10Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 11 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 3 

  

Page 11 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 12 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

  

Page 12Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 13 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 4 

  

Page 13 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 14 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

Page 14Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 15 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

  

Page 15 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 16 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 5 

  

Page 16Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 17 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

Page 17 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 18 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 6 

  

  

  

  

Page 18Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 19 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

From: PCC <donotreply@plymouth.gov.uk>  

Sent: 03 September 2020 16:17 

To: Tomkins, Will <Will.Tomkins@plymouth.gov.uk> 

Subject: Councillor Enquiry - case allocated to you - case ref: FS-Case-245347456 

 

  

 

 

Dear Colleague 

A new Councillor Enquiry case has been allocated to you to investigate. Please click here to view the 

case and action as necessary.  

Details of the case are below. 

Councillor: Cllr Kathy Watkin  

Enquiry details:  

I am a ward councillor for Plymstock Radford Ward and live in Hooe, about 300 metres from the 

Royal Oak. 

 

I have had various complaints about anti social behaviour, lack of social.distancing and loud music from 

the pub on a number of occasions. 

 

I understand that the pub was taken over by new management/ownership in February and good food 

was being offered by the pub as well as music on some nights. This provided a focal point and seemed 

like good news for the area to have a revamped community facility. It is regrettable that due to 

Covid19 it had to be closed shortly after it opened. However, when it did reopen there were concerns 

about activities in or around the pub not being socially distanced and litter from take -aways.  

.  

On Saturday August 1, the music was so loud, I could hear it loudly in my sitting room with the doors 

and windows closed. I had complaints from neighbours of the pub who informed me they had phoned 

the pub and asked for it to be turned down and they had been met with abuse. 

The music stopped sometime between 8.30.and 9pm. Some residents were working from.home and 

could not concentrate others were hoping for a quiet Saturday evening. The following week, again 

there was music. The volume was slightly lower, but could still be clearly heard from the back of my 

house. It stopped about 8pm.  

I have no doubt that those in the pub enjoyed the music,, but a number of the residents of Hooe found 

it intrusive 

 

There have also been parking issues. I have seen vehicles parked on Hooe Green and have had reports 

that vehicles have parked across the access to properties preventing people for getting to their own 
home. Although it is not known that customers of the pub are responsible, these incidents have taken 

place when the pub has been busy.  

 

Appendix 7 

Page 19 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 20 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

Since 8 August, I have not heard loud music from my house. Although I understand the landlord has 

made provision for social distancing, it is difficult for customers in a pub setting to comply. It is hoped 

that the noise and social distancing problems are temporary and the pub and its neighbours can coexist 

amicably in future.  

 

Most of the complaints I have had, outside the immediate neighbourhood of the pub, related to the 

loud music on 1 and 8 August.  

 

I would suggest that there is a condition on the licence restricting music ( including amplified music) 
being played other than inside the pub at any time.  

The service standard for responding to Councillor Enquiry's is 5 working days, therefore the due date 

for a response to this case is 10/09/2020.  

Kind regards 

 

Plymouth City Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 21 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 8 

  

  

  

Page 21 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 22 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

Appendix 9 

  

  

Page 22Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 23 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

  

Page 23 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 24 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 10 

  

  

Page 24Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 25 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 11 

  

  

  

Page 25 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 26 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 12 

  

  

Page 26Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 27 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 13 

  

  

Page 27 Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 28 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 14 

  

  

Page 28Agenda Item 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 29 of 29 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Appendix 15 

  

  

Page 29 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

OFFICIAL 

REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE REPORT   

Licensing Sub Committee
 

Date:    29 September 2020 

Title of Report: Review of Premises Licence: Lockdown Inn, Southway Drive, Southway  

Lead Member: Councillor Sally Haydon (Cabinet Member for Customer Focus and 
Community Safety) 

Lead Strategic Director: Dr Ruth Harrell (Office of the Director of Public Health) 

Author:   Marie Price (Licensing Officer) 

Contact Email:   Licensing@plymouth.gov.uk 

Your Reference:  ERS/LIC/PREM 

Key Decision:   No 

Confidentiality:  Part I - Official 

Purpose of the report:  

An application has been received from Will Tomkins, Environmental Health under Section 51 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 for the review of the premises licence in respect of the Lockdown Inn, Southway 
Drive, Southway, Plymouth. 
      
Recommendations and Reasons: 
That Members consider this report. 

Alternative options considered and rejected: 

None. 

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan: 

Our Plan – A City to be proud of. 

This report links to the delivery of the City and Council objectives and outcomes 

within the plan. 

A Growing City: The Licensing Policy and system aims to provide a balance between the need to 
protect residents and to enable legitimate businesses to operate within a necessary and proportionate 
regulatory framework.  This in turn makes a safer, more vibrant Plymouth to allow economic growth 
and opportunities for increased levels of employment. 

A Caring Council: The Licensing Policy has put in place an appropriate framework to allow the 
effective control of alcohol supply and regulated entertainment to keep all members of society 
protected and feeling safe by focusing on prevention and early intervention. The licensing system 
minimise the burdens on business and to allow communities the opportunity to influence decisions. 

See Our Plan  

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     

Not applicable 

 

Page 31 Agenda Item 6

http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/new_corporate_plan.pdf


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 2 of 3 
 

OFFICIAL 

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:  
None 
  
 
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 
Management: 
* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the 
Council’s duty to promote equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations 
between people who share protected characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not. 

Members should be aware that Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 puts a statutory duty on 
every Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the need to do all that it 
reasonably can do to prevent crime and disorder in its area. 

Published work / information: 

For more information please see the below links.  

Statement of Licensing Policy  

Licensing Act 2003 

Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 - April_2018                             

 
Appendices  
 

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)  

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate  

why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A  

             

 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

A Briefing report (mandatory)        

            

         

         

         
 

Background papers:  

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background 
papers are unpublished works, relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose 
facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the work is based. 

Title of background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it 
is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Application        

        

Page 32Agenda Item 6

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Licensing%20Policy%202019%20%20-%202024_2.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

OFFICIAL Page 3 of 3 
 

OFFICIAL 

   
 
 
Sign off: 
 

Fin Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text. 

Leg 3531
4/ag/9
.9.20 

Mon 
Off 

Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text. 

HR Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text. 

Asset
s  

Click 
here 
to 
enter 
text. 

Strat 
Proc 

Click here 
to enter 
text. 

Originating Senior Leadership Team member:  N/A 

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report?  N/A    

Date agreed: 

 

Cabinet Member signature of approval:  [electronic signature (or typed name and statement of 
‘approved by email’) on Cabinet member approval only] N/A 

Date:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33 Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

1.0    INTRODUCTION 
1.1 On the 10th August 2020 the licensing department received an application from 

Environmental Health under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the review of 
the premises licence in respect of The Lockdown Inn situated at Lockdown Inn. 
Southway Drive, Southway, Plymouth. PL6 6QW 

1.2    Review application. 
   Environmental Health have applied for the review of the premises licence for the 

purpose of promoting the licensing objectives in relation to the prevention of public 
nuisance. A Copy of this application has been served by Environmental Health on each 
of the responsible authorities and the holder of the premises licence. 

Environmental Health will say that since the re-opening of the Lockdown Inn on the 
easing of the COVID-19 restrictions the DPS of the Lockdown Inn, Mark Higgins, 
contacted Plymouth City Council Environmental Health to confirm the restrictions in 
place for having live music. On Friday 10th July they discussed the restrictions with 
Mr Higgins, namely that; Live music was permitted outside, audiences must be socially 
distant, and that any music must not be of a volume where patrons are not required 
to raise their voices. They also informed Mr Higgins that he must comply with his 
premises licence and ensure that any music should not disturb nearby residential 
properties. They referred Mr Higgins to the Government guidance documents for 
pubs and performing arts. 

They will further say that since commencing entertainment in the pub carpark 
Plymouth City Council has received 5 complaints from local residents and 1 from the 
Plymouth City Council Ward Member regarding noise from the public house. 
On the 16th July they emailed the premises licence holder, Victoria Inns and the DPS, 
Mark Higgins, informing them that complaints had been received regarding the noise 
levels. 

On the 8th August 2020 they completed noise monitoring at The Lockdown Inn 
between 16:00 and 17:00. Live and recorded music was playing from a stage set up in 
the beer garden of the pub. The music from the Lockdown was clearly audible at the 
junction of Goodwin Avenue and Pendeen Cresent, 85 metres from the premises. 
They walked down Longstone Avenue and the music was audible where the footpath 
joins Southway Drive 185 metres from the premises. 5 videos were taken of the noise 
from nearby locations. They approached the public house and asked to speak to the 
DPS Mr. Higgins, the security staff on duty was unable to hear me and had to come 
very close to my face to speak to me. This concerned me due to the current social 
distancing restrictions in Public Houses and my personal safety. 
Mr Higgins was made aware they were there and spoke in Longstone Avenue. Mr 
Higgins had difficulty hearing the officer due to the volume of the noise and they had 
to ask him to step away from them to ensure social distancing was maintained. They 
informed him that several complaints had been received, that the volume was too 
loud and that he should contact them on Monday to discuss. They explained that they 
could not stop the event in progress as they were lone working and that it would not 
be safe for them to do this. Mr Higgins stated that he would reduce the volume. 
The volume of noise witnessed on the 8th August 2020 would constitute a public 
nuisance. Mr Higgins had been provided advice and guidance in the noise levels that 

Page 34Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

are acceptable for the prevention of public nuisance. He had also been provided with 
guidance on the additional noise controls required in the COVID-19 guidance. From 
the evidence obtained on the 8th August none of this guidance had been adhered to. 

   In accordance with review proceedings at hrs on 10th August 2020 a licensing officer 
from Plymouth City Council attended the premises and spoke to Sam Holloway and 
requested the site notice be displayed at the premises. 

At 16:12hrs the same day a similar notice was displayed on the public notice board at 
the Civic Centre, Armada Way, Plymouth. 

1.3    Licensable Activities. 
  These premises have the following licensable activities and timings. 

B. Exhibition of films (Indoors)

Monday to Saturday 11:00 to 23:00   
Sunday 12:00 to 22:30    
E. Performance of live music (Indoors)
Monday to Sunday 12:00 to 22:00
F. Playing of recorded music (Indoors)

Monday to Thursday 12:00 to 23:59   
Friday and Saturday 12:00 to 02:00   
Sunday 12:00 to 22:30  

Seasonal Variations:  

24th and 26th December of each year, when falling on a day other that Friday or 
Saturday, times to be 12:00 hrs to 02:00 hrs. 
Every Bank Holiday from Thursday to Monday, times to be 12:00hrs to 02:00hrs. 
New Years Eve that does not fall on a Friday or Saturday open until 02:00hrs. 
Karaoke to cease at 23.00hrs 
G. Performance of dance (Indoors)

Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 23:00   
Sunday 10:00 to 22:30    

H. Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within E, F, or G
(Indoors)

Monday to Thursday 12:00 to 23:59   
Friday and Saturday 12:00 to 02:00   
Sunday 12:00 to 22:30    

Seasonal Variations:  

24th and 26th December of each year, when falling on a day other that Friday or 
Saturday, times to be 12:00 hrs to 02:00 hrs. 

Page 35 Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

Every Bank Holiday from Thursday to Monday, times to be 12:00hrs to 02:00hrs. 

New Years Eve that does not fall on a Friday or Saturday open until 02:00hrs. 

Live music and Karaoke to cease at 22.00hrs 
I. Provision of facilities for making music (Indoors)

Monday to Thursday 12:00 to 23:59  
Friday and Saturday 12:00 to 02:00   
Sunday 12:00 to 22:30  

Seasonal Variations:  

24th and 26th December of each year, when falling on a day other that Friday or 
Saturday, times to be 12:00 hrs to 02:00 hrs. 

Every Bank Holiday and from Thursday to Monday, times to be 12:00hrs to 
02:00hrs. 

New Years Eve that does not fall on a Friday or Saturday, times to be 12:00hrs to 
02:00hrs 

Karaoke to cease at 23.00hrs 
J. Provision of facilities for dancing (Indoors)

Monday to Thursday 12:00 to 23:59   
Friday and Saturday 12:00 to 02:00   
Sunday 12:00 to 22:30  

Seasonal Variations:     
24th and 26th December of each year, when falling on a day other that Friday or 
Saturday, times to be 12:00 hrs to 02:00 hrs. 

Every Bank Holiday and from Thursday to Monday, times to be 12:00hrs to 
02:00hrs. 

New Years Eve that does not fall on a Friday or Saturday, times to be 12:00hrs to 
02:00hrs 
K. Provision of facilities for entertainment of a similar description to that
falling within I or J (Indoors)

Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 23:00   
Sunday 10:00 to 22:30    
L. Late night refreshment (Indoors & Outdoors)

Monday to Thursday 23:00 to 23:59   
Friday and Saturday 23:00 to 01:00   

Seasonal Variations:  

Page 36Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

24th and 26th December of each year, when falling on a day other that Friday or 
Saturday, times to be 23:00 hrs to 02:00 hrs. 

Every Bank Holiday and from Thursday to Monday, times to be 23:00hrs to 
02:00hrs. 

New Years Eve that does not fall on a Friday or Saturday, times to be 23:00hrs to 
02:00hrs 
M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the
premises

Monday to Thursday 10:00 to 23:59   
Friday and Saturday 10:00 to 01:30   
Sunday 10:00 to 23:00    

Seasonal Variations:  

24th and 26th December of each year, when falling on a day other that Friday or 
Saturday, times to be 10:00 hrs to 02:00 hrs. 

Every Bank Holiday from Thursday to Monday, times to be 11:00hrs to 01:30hrs. 

New Years Eve that does not fall on a Friday or Saturday, times to be 11.00hrs to 
01:30hrs. 
Premises Opening Hours 

Monday to Thursday 10:00 to 00:30   
Friday and Saturday 10:00 to 02:00   
Sunday 10:00 to 23:30   

Seasonal Variations:  

24th and 26th December of each year, when falling on a day other than Friday or 
Saturday, times to be 10:00 hrs to 02:00 hrs. 

Every Bank Holiday from Thursday to Monday, times to be 10:00hrs to 02:00hrs. 

New Years Eve that does not fall on a Friday or Saturday open until 02:00hrs.  

1.4 Conditions attached to the licence (Appendix 1) 

2.0 RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES 

2.1 Devon & Cornwall Police – no representations. 

2.2    Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service – no representations. 

2.3    Trading Standards – no representations 

Page 37 Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

2.4     Planning Officer - no representations. 

2.5     Child Protection – no representations 

2.6     Health & Safety Executive – no representations. 

2.7     Health Authority – no representations. 

2.8     Licensing Authority – no representations 

3.0   OTHER PARTIES 

We have received 2 letter in support of the review from resident within the vicinity 
of the premises. We have also received  1 letters against the application.   

4.0 CONSIDERATIONS 

4.1 In making its decision the Committee is obliged to have regard to the application and 
any relevant representations. The Committee should take such steps, if any, as it 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, which are:   

• the prevention of crime and disorder;
• public safety;
• the prevention of public nuisance;
• the protection of children from harm.

In making its decision the Committee is also obliged to have regards to: 
• The guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 with the 

following paragraph’s relevant to this application:
o 1.2 - 1.5, 1.9, 1.10, 1.12, 1.16, 1.17
o 2.3, 2.4, 2.5, 2.14, 2.25, 2.16, 2.17, 2.18, 2.20, 2.21 and 2.26
o 11.1, 11.7, 11.9, 11.10, 11.10, 11.11 and 11.16 - 11.23
o 15.36 - 15.44, 15.55 and 15.56.

• The Council’s own Licensing Policy with the following headed paragraphs being 
relevant to this application:

o Licensing Hours (Page 11)
o Designated Premises Supervisor (Page 13)
o Protecting Children from Harm (page 16)
o Public Nuisance (Page 17 – 19)
o Licensing Conditions (page 20) and
o Review of premises licence (Page 22-23)

• Also the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the 
parties.

4.2 The steps referred to above are : 
(a) to modify the conditions of the licence (which includes adding new

conditions, any alteration or omission of an existing condition);
(b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
(c) to remove the designated premises supervisor;
(d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

Page 38Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

(e) to revoke the licence;

Members are made aware that any existing conditions relating to live or recorded 
music which are already on the licence are suspended between the hours of 8am and 
11pm due to amendments made to the Licensing Act 2003. However on a review of 
a premises licence, section 177A(3) of the Act permits a licensing authority to lift that 
suspension. Also section 177A(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 would allow Members to 
add a condition to the licence relating to music as if it were regulated entertainment. 
If members were to do this then any condition would need to include a statement 
that section 177A of the Act does not apply to that condition. 

 Where the committee takes a step in 4.2 (a) or (b), it may provide that the 
modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not exceeding three 
months) as it may specify. 

Page 39 Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL

• ANNEX 2 - CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING
SCHEDULE

Steps taken to promote the four licensing objectives:

Conditions changed following Minor Variation 14 May 2015

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

All staff shall be fully trained to perform their role - the Premises Licence Holder
and/or Designated Premises Supervisor shall ensure that all staff receive induction
training prior to the sale of alcohol and then trained at least every 12 months in
the contents of the premises licence including times of operation, licensable
activities and all conditions.

Training of staff shall be recorded in documentary form that will be available for
inspection at the request at all reasonable times by an authorised officer from a
relevant responsible authority.  The records will be retained for at least 3 years.

The Premises Licence Holder will ensure that CCTV system is fully compliant with
the guidance contained in the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) guidance
document (www.informationcommissioner.gov.uk
<http://www.informationcommissioner.gov.uk>) regarding installation of CCTV
that is provided at the premises. 

The CCTV equipment shall be maintained in good working order, shall cover all 
areas of the premises to which the public have access and include facial recognition 
either at entrance or exit point. 

Images shall be retained for a minimum of 14 days and CCTV system shall be 
capable of downloading images to a recognizable viewable format. 

A refusal register will be kept for any person refused service.  The record will 
contain the time and date, the reason, the person (if known), the action taken and 
details of the person responsible for the management of the premises at the time 
of the incident. 

An incident book shall be maintained to record any activity of any violence, 
criminality or anti-social behaviour.  The record will contain the time and date, the 
nature of the incident, the people involved, the action taken and details of the 
person responsible for the management of the premises at the time of the incident. 

Appendix 1 

Page 40Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

A list of banned individuals is to be recorded in the incident book with name, 
description of individual, length of ban and reason. 

The refusals register and incident book shall be available for inspection at all 
reasonable times by an authorised officer of relevant responsible authority.  The 
records will be retained for at least 12 months. 

There will be a drug prevention policy in place which staff will be trained in the 
contents of the policy.  

The Condition in  (Annex 3) has been amended to: The requirement to employ 
SIA registered Door Supervisors from 22.00hrs should the premises be open afer 
midnight to be 

modified and the use of Door Supervisors to be dependent on the venues event 
risk assessment. 

Public Safety 

The Designated Premises Supervisor and/or responsible person shall not allow any 
open drinking vessel, glass or bottle to be taken from the licensed area. 

The collection of glasses and bottles shall be undertaken at regular intervals to 
ensure there is no build-up of empties in and around the premises. 

Prevention of Public Nuisance 

The Designated Premises Supervisor and/or responsible person shall ensure that 
outside areas of the premises will be controlled in a safe and effective manner to 
the same standard operated within the premises building and will pay special 
attention to the impact that the use of the outside areas haves on the surrounding 
community.  

Clear signage is to be on display by the exits requesting that patrons leave the 
premises quietly and respect the local residents.  

Protection of Children from Harm 

All staff shall be trained in the requirements of the Challenge 21 policies. 

A notice shall be displayed at the counter advising customers that they will be 
required to prove their age when challenged by staff for proof of age. 

Conditions agreed with Environmental Health 

The Prevention of Public Nuisance 

1. Doors and windows will be kept closed whenever regulated entertainment is
carried on an in any event after 23.00hrs. to reduce breakout of noise.

Page 41 Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

2. Amplified music shall not be played at a level that will cause unreasonable
disturbance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity.

3. Staff will check prior to entertainment, and periodically during the
entertainment, that all windows are doors are shut.

4. A senior member of staff (manager) will assess the impact of any noisy activities
on neighbouring premises at the start of the activity/entertainment an
periodically throughout the activity/entertainment and take action to reduce
noise levels if they are found to be excessive/distinguishable above background
levels at the nearest residential property.

5. Management will control the sound levels of the music/entertainment before
midnight.

6. To prevent entertainment being intrusive, noise emanating from the premises
will not be clearly audible 1 meter from the façade of the nearest residential
property.

7. Between 00.00hrs and 2.30hrs. Noise emanating from the premises will not be
clearly distinguishable above back ground levels 1 meter from the façade of the
nearest residential property.

8. The outside area shall not be used by patrons after 23.00hrs for the purpose of
an external drinking area.

9. At least 15 minutes before the last sale of alcohol the atmosphere will be
adjusted to create a calm period of wind down. An example will be the turning
up of lights and switching off of any background music.

10. The outside areas will be closed and cleared of customers after the hours of
23.00hrs.

11. Prominent, clear and legible notices are displayed at all exits requesting patrons
to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area
quietly.

12. The placing of bottles into receptacles outside the premises is only permitted
to take place between the hours of 09.00hrs and 17.00hrs to minimise the
disturbance to nearby premises.

13. All ventilation and extract systems are designed and maintained so as to
prevent noxious smells causing a nuisance to nearby properties.

14. The premises has a waste collection contract with Plymouth City Council for
the removal of waste weekly.

15. Patrons will be asked not to stand around talking in the street outside the
premises or any car park, and asked to leave the vicinity quickly and quietly.

Page 42Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

16. A specific taxi operator has been nominated for staff and customers use. The
company’s telephone number is advertised to customers. The operator and all
drivers are aware that they should arrive and depart as quietly as possible,
should not sound vehicle horns as signal of their arrival or leave engines idling
unnecessarily. In addition, staff will leave as quietly as possible, particularly at
night and early in the morning.

• ANNEX 3 - CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE
LICENSING AUTHORITY

(The below condition is amended in Annex 2 following minor variation
on 14 May 2015)

The Condition in  (Annex 3) has been amended to: The requirement to employ
SIA registered Door Supervisors from 22.00hrs should the premises be open after
midnight to be modified and the use of Door Supervisors to be dependent on the
venues event risk assessment.

Page 43 Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

Appendix 2 

Page 44Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

Appendix 3 

Page 45 Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL Page 46Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL Page 47 Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL Page 48Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL 

Appendix 4 

Page 49 Agenda Item 6



OFFICIAL Page 50Agenda Item 6


	Agenda
	5 Review of Premises Licence: Royal Oak, Lake Road, Plymouth
	6 Review of Premises Licence: Lockdown Inn, Southway Drive, Plymouth
	Recommendations and Reasons:
	Lockdown Content Report.pdf
	 Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority





